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Committee on Legal! Ethics recom-
mended that attorney’s license to practice

any such witness, as stated in such affidavit, is

necessary and material to the defense of the

accused on his trial, an order may be made by
such court or judge for the taking of the
deposition of any such witness[.]”

This section authorizes court-ordered deposi-
tions of defense witnesses only. A similar situa-
tion existed in Rule 15 of the Federal Rules of
Criminal Procedure until 1975 when it was
changed to permit a deposition of a Govern-
ment witness. The 1975 Committee Note to
Rule 15 suggests that the original refusal to
permit the Government the right to compel a
deposition might have been based on concern
over the Sixth Amendment right of confronta-
tion and notes that such doubts seem to have
been resolved by California v. Green, 399 US.
149, 90 S.Ct. 1930, 26 L.BEd.2d 489 (1970). See 8
Moore's Federal Practice: Criminal § 15-7 & -8
(1991).
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law be annulied. The Supreme Court of
Appeals, Brotherton, J., held that: (1) an-
nulment of license to practice law is appro-
priate sanction for pleas of guilty to three
federal felonies including obstruction of
justice and Hobbs Act violation, and (2)
mitigation hearings are inappropriate when
circumstances involve willful violation of
public trust by extortion or obstructing jus-
tice.

License to practice law annulled,

1. Attorney and Client &=53(2)

In attorney discipline proceeding initi-
ated by Committee on Legal Ethics, burden
is on Committee to prove, by full, prepon-
derating and clear evidence, the charges
contained in the Committee’s complaint.

2. Attorney and Clieni &=53(2)

In attorney discipline proceeding, Com-
mittee on Legal Ethics satisfies its burden
of proving the charges contained in the
Committee’s complaint when all appeals
have been exhausted and there is final
criminal conviction.

3. Attorney and Client =58
Constitutional Law &=287.2(5)

License to practice law is valuable
right, such that. its withdrawal must be
accompanied by appropriate due process
procedures; attorney must be given right
to request evidentiary hearing to introduce
mitigating factors that may bear on disci-
plinary punishment- to be imposed.
U.S.C.A. Const.Amend. 14.

4. Attorney and Client &=58

In attorney discipline proceeding, miti-
gation hearings are appropriate only where
the court perceives circumstances in the
case which, if developed, might be suffi-
cient fo mitigate the disciplinary action.

5. Aftorney and Client ¢=58

In attorney discipline proceeding,
whether mitigation hearing is appropriate
will depend upon variety of factors includ-
ing nature of attorney’s misconduct, sur-
rounding facts and circumstances, previous
ethical violations, willfulness of the con-
duet, and adequacy of attorney’s previous

opportunity to present evidence sufficient
for determination of appropriate sanctions.

6. Aitorney and Client ¢=58

Annulment of license to practice law is
appropriate sanction for pleas of guilty to
three federal felonies including Hobbs Act
violation. 18 U.S.C.A. §§ 1341, 1503, 1951;
26 U.S.C.A. § 7206(1).

7. Attorney and Client ¢=58

In attorney discipline proceeding, miti-
gation hearing is inappropriate when eir-
cumstances involve lawyer who wilfully vi-
olates public trust by extortion or obstruet-
ing juatice,

Syllabus by the Court

1. “*“In a court proceeding initiated
by the Committee on Legal Ethics of the
West Virginia State Bar to annul the li-
cense of an attorney to practice law, the
burden is on the Committee to prove, by
full, preponderating and clear evidence, the
charges contained in the Committee’s com-
plaint.” Syl. Pt. 1, Committee on Legal
Ethics v. Pence, 216 S.E.2d 236 (W.Va.
1975)° Syllabus Point 1, Commitiee on
Legal Ethics v. Walker, 178 W.Va. 150, 358
8.E.2d 234 (1987).” Syl pt. 1, Commitlee
on Legal Ethics of the West Virginia
State Bar v Sty, — W.Va, ——, 380
S.E.2d 219 (1989).

2. “"Where there has been a final
criminal conviction, proof on the record of
such conviction satisfies the Commitiee on
Legal Ethics’ burden of proving an ethical
violation arising from such conviction.”
Syl. pt. 2, Commattee on Legal Ethics of
the West Virginia State Bar v. Siz, —
W.Va. —, 380 S.E.2d 219 (1989).

3. “A license to practice law is a valu-
able right, such that its withdrawal must
be accompanied by appropriate due process
procedures. Where annulment of an attor-
ney’s license is sought based on a felony
conviction under Article VI, Section 28 of
the Constitution, By-Laws, and Rules and
Repulations of the West Virginia State
Bar, due process requires the attorney be
given the right to request an evidentiary
hearing, The purpose of such a hearing is
not to attack the conviction collaterally, but
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to introduce mitigating factors which may
bear on the disciplinary punishment to be
imposed.” Syllabus point 2, Committee on
Legal Ethics of the West Virginia State
Bar v PBoettner, — W.Va., ——, 394
S.E.2d 735 (1990).

4. *“The cases in which a mitigation
hearing will be appropriate are the excep-
tion rather than the rule. Whether a miti-
gation hearing is appropriate in a particu-
lar instance will depend upon a variety of
factors, including but not limited to, the
nature of the attorney’s misconduet, sur-
rounding facts and circumstances, previous
ethical violations, the wilfulness of the con-
duct, and the adequacy of the attorney’s
previous opportunity to present evidence
sufficient for a determination of appropri-
ate sanctions.” Syl. pt. 3, Committee on
Legal Ethics v. Folio, — W.Va. — 401
S.E.2d 248 (1990).

5. Mitigation hearings are inappropri-
ate when the circumstances involve a law-
yer who wilfully violates the public trust
by extortion or the obstruction of justice.

Sherri D. Goodman, Charleston, for com-
plainant.

Stephen V. Wehner, Santarelli, Smith &
Carroccio, Washington, D.C., for respon-
dent.

BROTHERTON, Justice:

This case involves an action by the Com-
mittee on Legal Ethics of the West Virginia
State Bar against the respondent, Arch A.
Moore, Jr., former Governor of the State of
West Virginia, On May 8 1990, the re-
spondent pled guilty in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of
West Virginia to one count of mail fraud
(18 U.8.C. § 1341), one count of a Hobbs
Act violationr (18 Y.8.C. § 1951), two counts
of filing a false income tax return (26
U.S.C. § 7206(1)), and one count of obstrue-
tion of justice (18 U.3.C. § 1503).

1. Our ruling today is not altered by the penden-
¢y of Moore's habeas corpus petition, which he
claimed he would file in district court. Al
issues before this Court have been resolved by
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Shortly thereafter, however, the respon-
dent attempted to withdraw his guilty plea,
claiming that he pled guilty upon erroneocus
advice from his trial counsel regarding sen-
tencing, parole eligibility, and the conse-
quences of pleading guilty. The respon-
dent claims that if he had been properly
advised of those consequences, he would
not have pled guilty. The district court
denied the respondent’'s motion to with-
draw his guilty plea. The respondent then
filed an appeal with the United States Cir-
cuit Court of Appeals for the Fourth Cir-
cuit. On April 23, 1991, the Fourth Circuit
issued a written opinion which denied the
respondent’s appeal and refused to find the
respondent had met the requirements for
withdrawing his guilty plea. The Fourth
Circuit subsequently denied the respon-
dent’s petition for a rehearing. In the
meantime, the Committee on Legal Ethics
suspended the réspondent’s lieense to prac-
tice law. However, the action to disbar
him from the practice of law in West Virgi-
nia was suspended, pending completion of
the appeal process.

On July 2, 1991, the respondent came
before this Court requesting a stay in the
disciplinary proceedings against him. In
his brief, the respondent stated that within
two weeks following that argument, he
would file a petition for certiorari with the
United States Supreme Court, in which he
would contend that the Fourth Cireuit
erred in finding that the respondent had
not met the requirements for withdrawing
his plea. The respondent also claimed that
he would file a habeas corpus petition in
the district court under 28 U.S.C. § 2255
and argue that he received gross ineffec-
tive assistance of counsel and that his
guilty plea was based upon this erroneous
advice. This Court agreed to postpone any
action until all appeals had been exhausted.

On October 7, 1991, the United States
Supreme Court refused certiorari on the
respondent’s appeal. Thug, the isgue of the
annulment of the respondent's law license
is now properly before this Court.! The

the United States Supreme Court’s denial of
certiorari, and, therefore, we refuse to delay our
decision because of pending habeas corpus peti-
tions which could continue indefinitely. If,
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Committee on Legal Ethics requests that
the respondent’s law license be annulled
and contends that a mitigation hearing is
inappropriate in this case. For the reason
stated below, we agree.

The West Virginia Rules of Professional
Conduet, Rule 8.4(b)~{d) (1990) provides, in
part, that:

It is professional misconduet for a law-
yer to:

* ] * - L] *

(b) commit a criminal act that reflects
adversely on the lawyer's honesty, trust-
worthiness or fitness as a lawyer in oth-
er respects;

(c) engage in conduct involving dishon-
est[y), fraud, deceit or misrepresentation;

(d) engage in conduct that is preju-
dicial to the administration of justice;

£} - * * * *

In this case, the respondent violated the
three provisions of Rule 8.4 listed above.

{1,2] The burden of proving the charge
contained in the Committee’s complaint is
upon the Committee. **“In a court pro-
ceeding initiated by the Committee on Le-
gal Ethics of the West Virginia State Bar
to annul the license of an attorney to prac-
tice law, the burden is on the Committee to
prove, by full, preponderating and clear
evidence, the charges contained in the Com-
mittee’s complaint.” Syl. Pt. 1, Commitiee
on Legal Ethics v. Pence, 216 S.E.2d 236
(W.Va.1975)." Syllabus Point 1, Commii-
tee on Legal Ethics v. Walker, 178 W.Va.
150, 358 S.E.2d 234 (1987).” Syl pt. 1,
Committee on Legal Ethics of the West
Virginia State Bar v. Six, — W.Va. —,
380 S.E2d 219 (1989). That proof, how-
ever, is satisfied when there is a final crimi-
nal conviction. “Where there has been a
final criminal conviction,” proof on the
record of such conviction satisfies the Com-
mittee on Legal Ethics’ burden of proving
an ethical violation arising from such con-
vietion.” Id. at syl pt. 2.

In this case, the respondent’s guilty plea
to the three felony criminal charges set out

however, Moore obtains relief upon habeas cor-
pus, this Court will consider its effect on the

above was made a part of the record. The
respondent’s appeal to the United States
Supreme Court from the conviction on his
guilty plea before the United States Dis-
trict Court was refused. As all appeals
have been exhausted, there is now a final
criminal conviction on the respondent’s
record which satisfies the Committee's bur-
den of proving an ethical violation stem-
ming from the conviction. Therefore, the
petitioner has met its burden of proof.

{31 However, the respondent requests
an evidentiary hearing in mitigation of dis-
ciplinary action. The practice of holding an
evidentiary hearing for the purpose of in-
troducing mitigating factors which would
bear on the diseiplinary proceeding was
initiated in Committee on Legal Ethics of
the West Virginia State Bar v. Boettner,
-— W.Va. —, 394 S.E.2d 785 (1990). In
syllabus point 2, this Court stated that:

A license to practice law is a valuable

right, such that its withdrawal must be

accompanied by appropriate due process
procedures. Where annulment of an at-

torney’s license is sought based on a

felony conviction under Article VI, Sec-

tion 28 of the Constitution, By~Laws, and

Rules and Regulations of the West Virgi-

nia State Bar, due process requires the

attorney be given the right to request an
evidentiary hearing. The purpose of
such a hearing is not to attack the con-
vietion collaterally, but to introduce miti-
gating factors which may bear on the
disciplinary punishment to be imposed.

14,51 However, in Commitiee on Legal
Ethics v. Folio, — W.Va. —, 401 8.E.2d
248 (1990), this Court explained that mitiga-
tion hearings are appropriate only where
the Court perceives circumstances in the
case which, if developed, might be suffi-
cient to mitigate the disciplinary action.
Id. 401 S.E.2d at 252. Moreover,

The cases in which a mitigation hearing

will' be appropriate are the exception

rather than the rule. Whether a mitiga-
tion hearing is appropriate in a particular
instance will depend upon a variety of
factors, including but not limited to, the

status of his law license upon petition to this
Court.
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nature of the attorney’s misconduct, sur-

rounding facts and circumstances, previ-
ous ethical violations, the wilfulness of
the conduct, and the adequacy of the
attorney's - previous - opportunity to
present evidence sufficient for a determi-
nation of appropriate sanctions.

Id. at syl pt. 3.

[6] When the respondent was admitted
to the practice of law in this State, he took
an oath to support the Constitution of the
United States and the Constitution of the
State of West Virginia, to honestly demean
himself in the practice of law, and, to the
best of his ability, execute the office of
attorney-atlaw. W.Va.Code § 30-2-3.
Further, when he took the oath of office as
governor of this State, the respondent
swore, on three separate occasions, to sup-
port the Constitution of the United States,
the Constitution of the State of West Virgi-
nia, and to discharge the duties of governor
to the best of his skill and judgment.
W.Va. Const. art. IV, § b.

As an attorney, the respondent brought
to the office of governor all his prior expe-
rience and knowledge. Consequently, the
acts that occurred while he was governor
are intermingled with the acts performed in
contravention of his law license. Once a

. person takes the oath to honestly demean

himself in the practice of law, his existence,
from that day forward or until he surren-
ders his license to practice law, requires
that he not break any of the laws which he
is sworn to uphold. This oath is the cor-
nerstone upon which the foundation of our
jurisprudence is built. Without that cor-
nerstone, the prineiples of our Constitution
disintegrate.

The respondent was entrusted with the
right to practice law and the privilege to
govern this State. He failed both. As a
lawyer, he pled guilty to eriminal acts that
arose out of his practice of law. As former
governor, he pled guilty to eriminal acts
that grew out of his position as governor.
He violated both oaths of office. Can there
be any more serious breach of trust than
the violation of these two oaths?

The respondent pled guilty to three fed-
eral felonies, including obstruction of jus-
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tice and a Hobbs Act violation. A lawyer’s
guilty plea to a charge of obstruction of
justice alone would be sufficient to annul a
lawyer’s license to practice law. Mitigation
is neither possible under these circum-
stances, nor warranted.

[7] Mitigation hearings are inappropri-
ate when the circumstances involve a law-
yer who wilfully violates the public trust
by extortion or obstructing justice as the
respondent did. Accordingly, we deny the
respondent’s motion for a mitigation hear-
ing and hold that his license to practice law
in the State of West Virginia is hereby
annulled.

License to practice law annulled.

© E KEY HUMBER 5YSTEM
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SYLLABUS BY THE COURT

1. "“/vIn a court proceeding initiated by the Committee
on Legal Ethics of the West Vvirginia State Bar to annul the license
of an attorney to practice law, the burden is on the Comnittee to
prove, by full, preponderating and clear evidence, the charges

contained in the Committee’s complaint." Syl. Pt. 1, Committee on

lLegal Ethics v. Pence, 216 S.E.2d 236 (W.Va. 1975).’ Syllabus
Point 1, Committee on Iegal Ethics v. Walker, W.Va. , 358
S.E.2d 234 (1987)." Syl. pt. 1, Committee on Legal Ethics of the

West Virginia State Bar v. Six, W.Va. , 380 S.E.2da 219
(1989) .
2. "Where there has been a final criminal conviction,

proof on the record of such conviction satisfies the Committee on
Legal Ethics’ burden of proving an ethical violation arising from

such conviction." Syl. pt. 2, Committee on Legal Ethics of the

West Virginia State Bar v. Six, W.Va. , 380 S.E.2d 219

(1989) .

3. "A license to practice law is a valuable right, such
that its withdrawal must be accompanied by appropriate due process
procedures. Where annulment of an attorney’s license is sought
pased on a felony conviction under Article VI, Section 23 of the
Cconstitution, By-Laws, and Rules and Regulations of the West
virginia State Bar, due process requires the attorney be given thel

i



right to request an evidentiary hearing. The purpese of such a

hearing is not to attack the conviction collaterally, but to
introduce mitigating factors which may bear on the disciplinary

punishment to be imposed." Syllabus point 2, Committee on Legal

Ethics of the West Virginia State Bar v. Boettner, w.va, ,

394 S.E.2d 735 (1990).

4, "The cases in which a mitigation hearing will be
appropriate are the exception rather than the rule. Whether a
mitigation hearing is appropriate in a particular instance will
depend upon a variety of factors, including but not limited to, the

nature of the attorney’s misconduct, surrounding facts and

‘circumstances, previous ethical violations, the wilfulness of the

conduct, and the adequacy of the attorney’s previous opportunity to

present evidence sufficient for a determination of appropriate

sanctions." Syl. pt. 3, Committee on Legal Ethics v. Folio,
W.Va. , 401 S.E.2d 248 (19%0).

5. Mitigation hearings are inappropriate when the
circumstances involve a lawyer who wilfully violates the public

trust by extortion or the obstruction of justice.

P
|



Brotherton, Justice:

This case involves an action by the Committee on Legal

Ethics of the West Virginia State Bar against the respondent, Arch |

'A. Moore, Jr., former Governor of the State of West Virginia. on

May 8, 1990, the respondent pled guilty in the United States
District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia to one
count of mail fraud (18 U.S.C. § 1341), one count of a Hobbs Act
violation (18 U.S.C. § 1951), two counts of filing a false income
tax return (26 U.S.C. § 7206(1)), and one count of obstruction of

justice (18 U.S.C. § 1503).

_ Shortly thereafter, however, the respondent attempted to
withdraw his guilty plea, claiming that he pled guilty wupon
erroneous advice from his trial counsel regarding sentencing,
parole eligibility, and the consequences of pleading guilty. The
respondent claims that if he had been pr&perly advised of those
consequences, he would not have pled guilty. The district court
denied the respondent’s motion to withdraw his guilty plea. The
respondent then filed an appeal with the United States Circuit
Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit. On April 23, 1991, the
Fourth Circuit issued a written opinion which denied the
respondent’s appeal and refused to find the respondent had met the
requirements for withdrawing his guilty plea. The Fourth Circuit
subsequently denied the respondent’s petition for a rehearing. In

the meantime, the Committee on ILegal Ethics suspended the



respondent’s license to practice law. However, the action to
disbar him from the practice of law in West Virginia was suspended,

pending completion of the appeal process.

Oon July 2, 1991, the respondent came before this Court
requesting a stay in the disciplinary proceedings against him. 1In
his brief, the respondent stated that within two weeks following
that argument, he would file a petition for certiorari with the
United States Supreme Court, in which he would contend that the
Fourth Circuit erred in finding that the respondent had not met the
requirements for withdrawing his plea. The respondent also claimed

that he would file a habeas corpus petition in the district court

‘under 28 U.S.C. § 2255 and argue that he received gross ineffective

assistance of counsel and that his guilty plea was based upon this
erronecus advice. This Court agreed to postpone any action until

all appeals had been exhausted.

on October 7, 1991, the United States Supreme Court
refused certiorari on the respondent’s appeal. Thus, the issue of
the annulment of the respondent’s law license is now properly

before this Court.! The Committee on Legal Ethics requests that

'our ruling today is not altered by the pendency of
Moore’s habeas corpus petition, which he claimed he would file in
district court. All issues before this Court have been resolved
by the United States Supreme Court’s denial of certiorari, and,
therefore, we refuse to delay our decision because of pending
habeas corpus petitions which could continue indefinitely. 1If,
however, Moore obtains relief upon habeas corpus, this Court will
consider its effect on the status of his law license upon
petition to this Court.
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the respondent’s law license be annulled and contends that g
mitigation hearing is inappropriate in this case. For the reason

stated below, we agree.

The West Virginia Rules of Professional Conduct, -Rule_'
8.4(b)-(d) (1990) provides, in part, that:

It is professional misconduct for a lawyer
to: '

* * %

(b) commit a criminal act that reflects
adversely on the lawyer’s honesty,
trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in
other respects; :

(¢) engage in conduct involving
dishonest(y], fraud, deceit or
misrepresentation; :

(d) engage in conduct that is prejudicial to
the administration of justice;

* * *
In this case, the respondent violated the three provisions of Rule

8.4 listed above.

The burden of proving the charge contained in the
Committee’s complaint is upon the Committee. - "/tIn a court
proceeding initiated by the Committee on Legal Ethics of the West
Virginia State Bar to annul the license of an attorney to practicer
law, the burden is on the Committee to prove, by full,
preponderating and clear evidence, the charges contained iﬁ the
Committee’s complaint." Syl. Pt. 1, Committee on Legal Ethics v.
Pence, 216 S.E.2d 236 (W.Va. 1975).’ Syllabus Point 1, Committee

3



on Legal Ethics v, Walker, W.Va. , 358 S.E.2d 234 (1987)."

Syl. pt. 1, Committee on Legal Fthics of the West Virginia State
Bar v. Six, W.va. . 380 S.E.2d 219 (1989). That proof,

however, is satisfied when there is a final criminal conviction.
"Where there has been a final criminal conviction, proof on the
record of such conviction satisfies the Committee on Legal Ethics’
purden of proving an ethical viclation arising from such

conviction." Id. at syl. pt. 2.

Tn this case, the respondent’s guilty plea to the _three
felony criminal charges set out above was made a part of the
record. The respondent’s appeal to the United States Supreme Court
from the conviction on his guilty plea before the United States
District Court was refused. As all appeals have been exhausted,
there is now a final criminal conviction on the respondent’s record
which satisfies the Committee’s burden of proving an ethical
violation stemming from the conviction. Therefore, the petitioner

has met its burden of proof.

However, the respondent requests an evidentiary hearing
in mitigation of disciplinary action. The practice of holding an
evidentiary hearing for the purpose of introducing mitigating
factors which would bear on the disciplinary proceeding was

jnitiated in Committee on Legal Ethics of the West Virginia State

Bar v. Boettner, Ww.Va. , 394 S.E.2d 735 (1990). In sYllabus

point 2, this Court stated that:



" A license to practice law is a valuable right,
such that its withdrawal must be accompanied
by appropriate due process procedures. Where
annulment of an attorney’s license is sought
based on a felony conviction under Article VI,
Section 23 of the Constitution, By-Laws, and
Rules and Regulations of the West Virginia
State Bar, due process requires the attorney
be given the right to request an evidentiary
hearing. The purpose of such a hearing 1s not
to attack the conviction collaterally, but to
introduce mitigating factors which may bear on
the disciplinary punishment to be imposed.

However, in Committee on Legal Ethigs v. Folio, ____w.va;
___, 401 S.E.2d 248 (1990), this Court explained that mitigation
hearings are appropriate only where the Court perceives
circumstances in the case which, if developed, might be sufficient
to mitigate the disciplinary action. Id. at 252. Moreover,

The cases in which a mitigation hearing will
be appropriate are the exception rather than
the rule. Whether a mitigation hearing is
appropriate in a particular instance will
depend upon a variety of factors, including
but not 1limited to, the nature of the
attorney’s misconduct, surrounding facts and
circumstances, previous ethical violations,
the wilfulness of the «c¢onduct, and the
adequacy of the attorney’s previous
opportunity to present evidence sufficient for
a determination of appropriate sanctions.

Id. at syl. pt. 3.
When the respondent was admitted to the practice of law

in this State, he took an cath to support the Constitution of the
United States and the Constitution of the State of West Virginia,

to honestly demean himself in the practice of law, and, to the best

) of his ability, execute the office of attorney-at-law. W.Va. Code

5




§ 30-2-3. Further, wheh he took the cath of office as governor of
this State, the respondent swore, on three separate occasions, to’
support the constitution of the United States, the Constitution of
the State of West Virginia, and to discharge the duties of governor

to the best of his skill and judgment. W.Va. Const. art. IV, § 5,

As én attorney, the respondent brought to the office of
governor all his prior experience and knowledge. Consequently, the
acts that occurred while he was governor are intermingled with the
acts performed in contravention of his law license. Once a person
takes the oath to honestly demean himself in the practice of law,
his existence, from that day forward or until he surrenders his
license to practice law, requires that he not break any of the laws
which he is sworn to uphold. This oath is the cornerstone upon
which the foundation of our jurisprudence is built. Without that

cornerstone, the principles of our Constitution disintegrate.

The respondent was entrusted with the right to practice
law and the privilege to govern this State. He failed both. As a
lawyer, he pled guilty to criminal acts that arose out of his
practice of law. As former governor, he pled guilty to criminal
acts that grew out of his position as governor. He violated both

oaths of office. Can there be any more serious breach of trust

+han the violation of these two oaths?



The respondent pled guilty to three federal felonies,

including obstruction of justice and a Hobbs Act violation, A
lawyer’s guilty plea to a charge of obstruction of justice alone
would be sufficient to annul a lawyer’s license to practice law.

Mitigation is neither possible under these circumstances, nor

warranted.

Mitigation hearings are inappropriate when the
circumstances involve a lawyer who wilfully violates the public
trust by extortion or obstructing justice as the respondent did.
Accordingly, we deny the respondent’s motion for a mitigation

hearing and hold that his license to practice law in the State of

West Virginia is hereby annulled.

o | License to practice law annulled.




